
 

Alcohol and Entertainment 
Licensing Sub-Committee (C)

Wednesday 30 September 2015 at 10.30 am
Board Room 3 - Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way, 
Wembley HA9 0FJ

Membership:

Members Substitute Members
Councillors: Councillors:
Long (Chair)
Hylton
McLeish

Bradley, Chohan, Harrison, 
Hector, Naheerathan and 
Shahzad

For further information contact: Joe Kwateng, Democratic Services Officer
(020) 8937 1354; joe.kwateng@brent.gov.uk

For electronic copies of minutes, reports and agendas, and to be alerted when the 
minutes of this meeting have been published visit:

democracy.brent.gov.uk

The press and public are welcome to attend this meeting



2

Agenda
Introductions, if appropriate.

Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members

Item Page

1 Declarations of personal and prejudicial interests 

Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, any relevant 
financial or other interest in the items on this agenda.

2 Application for variation to a premises licence held by HAKA 
International Ltd for the extension of the licence for late night 
refreshment to 05.00 hours, changes to the internal layout and 
amendment to condition 9 at "Cocoa", (271-273 Kilburn High Road, 
NW6 7JR), pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003. 

1 - 38

Conduct of the Hearing:
The hearing shall proceed as follows:
 General introduction by the Regulatory Services Manager
 Case for the Responsible Authority – Police/Regulatory Services
 Questioning of the Responsible Authority by Applicant and Members
 Case for the Applicant
 Questioning of the Applicant by the Responsible Authority and Members 
 Summing up by the Responsible Authority
 Summing up by the Applicant 

Members’ Deliberation
The Chair will then ask the representatives of the Responsible Authority and the Applicant 
to leave the meeting room whilst the panel goes into close session to deliberate the 
application. The applicant and the representatives of the responsible authority will be 
recalled to the meeting room when the Sub-Committee has made its decision.  The 
decision will be confirmed in writing to the applicant within 7 days

 Please remember to switch your mobile phone to silent during the 
meeting.

 The meeting room is accessible by lift and seats will be provided for 
members of the public.



LICENSING ACT 2003

Application for a Variation to a Premises Licence

1. The Application

Name of Applicant: HAKA International Ltd 

Name & Address of Premises: Cocoa, 271-273 Kilburn High Road, NW6 7JR

Applicants Agent: Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP

1. Application

The application is to:
 extend the licence for late night refreshment to 0500 hours
 change the internal layout
 To amend condition 9 on the current licence to read “After 2300 hours smoking areas 

shall be supervised at all times” 

2. Background

The premises are currently licensed to supply alcohol from 0800 hours until 0030 hours and 
provision of late night refreshments from 2300 hours until 0100 hours.

On 25th June 2014, the Licensing Authority received a minor variation requesting the 
removal of sale of alcohol.

3. Promotion of the Licensing Objectives

None 

4. Relevant Representations

Representations have been received from Metropolitan Police and Public Safety.

5. Interested Parties

None

6. Policy Considerations

Paragraph Nos:  8.1 – 8.4

8.1 Where responsible authorities and interested parties do not raise any relevant 
representations regarding the application made to the council, the council will grant the 



licence or certificate subject only to the conditions that are consistent with the operating 
schedule or club operating schedule and any mandatory conditions prescribed in the Act 
itself.

8.2 Where responsible authorities and interested parties raise relevant representations, 
the council may, if it is satisfied at a hearing or otherwise, impose conditions where 
considered necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

8.3 Any conditions attached by the council or submitted by the applicant must focus on 
the direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed premises, on those attending the 
premises and residents and persons working in the area. 

8.4 Any conditions attached to licences will be tailored to the individual needs, style and 
characteristics of the particular premises and events concerned and will be drawn from a 
‘model pool of conditions’ (where appropriate) to the particular premises.

7. Associated Papers
      

A. Copy of Application Form
B. Copy of Representation
C. Copy of Licence – Please note this is not the current licence - current licence 

waiting to be produced
D. OS Map



r),iic-

Oui lef: 

Youi lef; 

DDI: 

23 June 2015 
CAB.36210.1 

020 3400 2326 

Bl 
BERWIN 
LEIGHTON 
PAISNER 

Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP 
Adelaide House 
London Bridge 
London EC4R 9HA 
Tel: +44 (0)20 3400 1000 
Fax: +44 (0)20 3400 1111 

email: Craig.bayliS(a)blplaW.COrn DX92 London 
www.blplaw.com 

Licensing Section 
Brent Council 
Safer Streets 
Environment and Neiglibourhood Services 
Brent Civic Centre 
Engineers Way 
Wembley HA9 OFJ 

BY COURIER 

Dear Sir 

271/273 Kilburn High Road NWS 

We enclose the following on behalf of our client: 

1 Application for transfer of premises licence 
2 Application for major variation 
3 Local Authority fee of £338 
4 Consent form from current licensee 
5 Current licence 
6 Plan of premises 

Yours faithfully 

Ok 
BERWIN LEIGHTOW PAISNER LLP 

CC: The Responsible Authorities 

dfen\42277148.1 

Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP ("BLP") is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (registered number OC315919) and is authonscd and regulated by the 
Solicitors Regulation Authority (www.sra.org.uk). A list of partners is open to inspection at the above registered office. Within the BLP Group, partner is used to refer to a 
member, or an employee or consultant with equivalent standing and/or qualifications as required, of BLP or any of its affiliated firms and entities. For further information, 
see the legal notices section of our website (www.blplaw.com). 

http://www.blplaw.com
http://www.sra.org.uk
http://www.blplaw.com




[Iii::cil ii.tnin mcl .iddrons of relnvant licens:nq aulhohty and its reference number (optional).] 

Af)[)!ic;ilioin (<i \'Ar\ a pi-cniises h'ceiice jjoetcf the LiccesLor; .A,c{ 2IHI3 

PLI':.\SK REAIU'HF, FO'LLOWINC; INSTRUCTrONS Fil^ST 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing 
this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that )'our answers are inside the 
boxes and wi-iuen in black ink. I 'se addilional sheds if necessary. 

You ma} v\isli to kecji a cop} c»l (he coinpleled form lor your lecords. 

1/VVe ll.AKA Inlernntional Lid 
(Insert name(s) of applicant) 

beinfi (he pretnises licence holder, apply to •saî y a premises licence under section 34 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 i'or (he premises described in Far-f 1 below 

Premises licence number 
5428t)5 

Part 1 - Premises Details 

Postal address of premises or. 

Cocoa 
271 '273 Kilburn High Road 

Post town 

if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

London Postcode N\\'6 7.LR 

Telephone number at premises (.fan}) 

Non-domestic rateable value of premises No rateable value at time of submission 

Par! 2 - Applicant details 

Daytime contact 
telephone number 
E-mail address (optional) 
Current postal address if dif."crent 
from premises address 

Post town Postcode 



Pari 3 - N'ariation 

Please lick as appropriale 
Do voii want the proposetl variation to have elTecl as soon as possible? lYes D 

No 

H'not. from what dale do vou want the \aiialion lo lake effecf? DD MM YYYY 
X X 1 X 1 1 X X 

Please describe brielly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see guidance note 1) 

To permit a terminal hour for lale nighl refreshment of 05.00 in cerlain parts of the premises 
To chans;,e the inlernal layout 
To amend condition 9 in Annexe 2 to read "After 23.00 smoking areas shall be supervised at all times." 

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people are 
exoected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the number 
expected to attend: 

file:///aiialion


!':ii-( 4 Opcr'iitiii!"', SclK'(iiile 

I'lease con I pie it those pail-- ol the (_)peraung ScheJnIe below which would he subject to chani'c iflhis 
application |o \ar\ i-. successliil. 

Pf()>'isi(>ii ()('rt';;iil:i<'.'(l (.'tilcrdiiniiU'ii! Plciise ficiv iili (li;if apph ' 

a) plays (ihlicknig _\es l i l l i n h o x A ) LH 

h) liliiis (iftickin", yes. l i l lm box R) Q 

c) iiitloor sportiiii: events ! if lickiii'i yes, fill in box C) Q 

d) biixiiii; Of wreslliiu^ enleflaninienl (if ticking yes. !ill in box Uj LD 

e) live ninsic fiflicking _\es. fill in box E) Q 

0 fecorded ninsic (iflicking \es. 1111 in l)ox D Q 

g) perfoi'inanccs ofdance (if licking yes. 1111 in box G) Q 

. anything ofa similar description to that falling v\ ithin (e). (1) ut (g) I—, 
(if ticking yes. fill in box 11) 

Pro^'i.sion of Inle r.ight icficshnient (if ticking yes. fill in box I) [^] 

S.iie by rctarl of alcohol 0 '^ticking _ves. fill in box J) HH 

In all ca.ses complete boxes K, L anc M 



A 

1 Plays 
Standai' 1 cla\'s and linun[!,s 

6) 

Da> 

Mon 

Tue 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

Start Finish 

Will the perform.inee of a plav take place indoors or 
outdoors or both - please tick (please read Ruidance 
note 2) 

Indoors 

Outdoors 

Both 

D 

D 
D 

Please cive further details here (please read Li,uidaiice note 3) 

State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read Ruidance 
note 4) 

Non standard timinrrs. Where vou intend to use ihe premise:; for the 
performance of pla\ s at different times to those listed in the column on the 
left, please list (please read guidance note 5) 

1 



B 

1 ihus 
Slandar 

1 / n l p M k c 

1 da>'s aiiil liniiiis'.s 

6) 

l)a\ 1 Slarl 
• 

Moil 

Tue 

\\'ed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

Finish 

Will the exhibition o i n i m s lake plaee indoors or 
outdoors or both - please tick (please read iniidance 
note 2) 

Indciors 

( Kiidoors 

Boih 

D 

D 
D 

Please m \ e further details here (please read ;aiidanee nole 3) 

State anv seasonal variations lor the exhibition o l i l lms (please read 
guidanee note 4) 

Non standard timinjis. Where vou intend lo use the orcmises for the 
exhibition of 'Hms at different times to those listed in the eolumn on the ;eft. 
please list (please read guidance note 5) 



Indoor spoiling events 
Standard days and timings 
(please read guidance note 
6) 

Day 

Mon 

Tue 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

I Sun 

Start I'inish 

Plcast^ i!,ivc further details (please read fuidance note 3) 

State any seasonal variations for indoor sportine events (please read 1 
guidance note 4) 1 

Non standard timinris. Where vou intend to use the premises for indoor 
sportina events at different times to those listed in the column on the left. 
pleâ se_Hr.4 (please read guidance note 5) 



D 

IniMiu; or wrestljn 
cnieiUiinmenls 

(please read ;;nida 
6) 

l)a> Siai'l 

Mon 

Tue 

W'ed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

laiimys 
ice iiole 

\ mish 

.. 

Will the boxint: oi' vi resiling entertainment take place 
indoors or outdoors or both - please tiel< (please read 
guidance note 2) 

Indoors 

Uutdooi's 

F-iolh 

D 

D 
D 

Please give lurlher details here (please read guidance note 3) 

Stale anv seasonal \'ariations lor boxing or wrestling entcitainmenl (please 
■-a.:,a ,r..;Ar,„r.a , , ^ i o / l i 

Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for boxing or 
wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the 
left, please list (please read guidance note 5) 



Lix'c music 
Standard ila '̂s and timiiuis 
(please read guidance nole 
6) 

Da)' 

Mon 

Tue 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

1 Sun 

Slart finish 

Will the performance of live music lake place indoors 
or outdoors or both - please tick {please read 
guidance nolc 2) 

Indoors 

Outdoors 

Both 

D 

D 

□ 
Please I'jve further details here (please read fiuidance nolc 3) 

State an\ seasonal variations for the performance of live music (please r 
n,.:A^,^r.a -■, r^tr, A \ 

ead 

Non Standard timincs. Where vou intend to use the premises for the 
, - , r .^ r^>, -„ i .>„^„ /^f i ; , , „ „-,, ,r . ;r . ^ i A\fr^,-r^,-,i +;,^.^r- t „ t K ^ , ^ „ Unta . - i ; ^ t U c ^ ^ i , , ^ - . 

the left, please list (please read guidance note 5) 



Recorded miisi-. 
Standarc! daN's and limiiiys 
(p.leasi. read iMiklaiicc note 
(>) 

Da) 1 Sian ' rinisli 

Mon 

Tuc 

W'cd 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

Will the plaviim of recorded music take place indoors 
or outdoors or both - please tick (piease icail 
guidance note 2) 

indoors 

Outdoors 

Rolh 

D 

D 
D 

Please snve lui'ther details here (please read .'■jiidance nole 3) 

Siale an\' seasonal \ariaiion;; lor tlic plaviiu'. of recorded music (please read 
guidance nole 4) 

Non standard timiims. Where VOL: intend to use the premises for the pla^ inr. 
of recorded music at dilfcrcnt times to those listed -n the column on the left. 
please list (please read guidance note 5) 

file:///ariaiion


1 Perfoiinanees of dance 
Slandaid da>'S aiul tiininus 

1 (please read guidance note 
6) 

Da) 

Mon 

Tue 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sal 

j BUT 

Stai-l I'inish 

^^ ill (he performance of dance take place indoors 
or outdoors or both - please tick (please icad 
L'.Liidancc note 2) 

huioors 

Outdoors 

Both 

D 

D 
D 

Please <;i\'e further details here (please read uuidance ncUe 3) 1 

State any seasonal \aiiations for the performance of dance (please re id | 
r , , , ; ^ ^ , , ^ ^ „ ^ i „ A \ 

Non standard timin<:s. Where you intend to use the premises for the | 
^ « , - c « . . . ^ « „ „ « , , r r i ,<„«„ ^f ^i;r(Vi.-,>„( f;.»,«.. tn <^K«.,,> !;̂ < ,̂>ri ;« fu^ ^.-^i...^., „., 

the left, please list (please read guidance note 5) 

1 

file:///aiiations


H 

Vitviiiii " of a siiiiila!' 
iiescriji(M(ii (o fii;i£ f:illiii;i 
widiii) |e | , (0 or (,",; 
Suindard Jays and liminus 
(please read guidance note 

L)a\ 

MOM 

TLIC 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

Slari Mnisli 

1'lease !'i\ e a uescrinlion nl ilic l\ ne 'il eiilci'lainiiicni \ un will he nrox'if ill" 

Will (his entcriaiiiiDciil iake place indoors or 
ouldoors or bodi - please lick (please read uuidaiiee 
nole 2) 

Indoors 

Outdoors 

Both 

D 
D 
D 

Please ;;ive fiirlhei- details here (please read guidance note 3) 

State ;:nv seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar description 
to that falling within (e), (f) or (n) (please read guidance note 4) 

Non strnd.'ird (iminss. WhcTc von intend to use the premises for the 
eniertaJiineiit of a s'mii'ir desc-iption to f:h; t falliiir; within (e)- (0 o ■ n f 
,y rl.lr^.;,ni f i « , « r f̂ > fKr.^y, i J n . ^ a Jr. iUr. / . « l i . . ^ n n.n fl,/> I ̂  fV ^ I , , , , , , , lin 1 

(please read guidance nole 5) 



Late ni 
Standai-

(please 
6) 

Da\ 

Mon 

Tuc 

Wed 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

l̂it lerresiiinent 
1 da\',s and liininus 
■cad tiiiidance ncUe 

Slarl 

23.00 

23.00 

23.00 

23.00 

23.00 

23.00 

23.00 

I'inish 

05.00 

05.00 

05.00 

05.00 

05.00 

05,00 

05.00 

Will the provision of late night refreshment taive 
place indoors or outdoors or both - phrase tick 
(please read guidance note 2) 

lndo(M-s 

Outdoors 

Both 

1̂ 1 

D 
D 

Please give further details here (olease read guidance note 3) 

The terminal hour in the area hatched green on the depositee plan shall be 1 
05.00. 

State anv seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshment 
(please read guidance note 4) 

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for th 
„ „ „ , , ; „ : „ „ „ r i , . j ^ „ „ ; „ i , * w „ f „ „ „ i ^ „ „ * . ,+ j : i T „ . . „ „ f ^ ; . „ „ . , t^ f U « „ „ i:^t^A 

1 
the column on the left, please list (please read [guidance note 5) 1 



Si . i i i Ja i -

, 1 , 1 , . I . . , . 

oi'alcohoi 
1 clays aiul liniiii[;s 
-, " i j M ] li, I ' m , , ' rw ih ' 

(') 

! 
i ).i\ Siari ! Finish 

1 

Mon 

Tue 

W cc-l 

Thur 

Fri 

Sat 

Sun 

1 

^-S'li! the smppfy of alcohoi l)c for cofisiuiip'fiifii 
pk-ase tick (please read 'uiidancL' imle 7) 

( »n i h c 
premises 

Off the 
premises 

Both 

D 

D 
D 

j;t:ite :in\ seasonal ^'ariations f(»r (IJC supph ' of alcohol (nicasc ix'ad 
,,,,-Ar,,-^,^,^ „ , , ( , , 1 \ 

Non-Stand: rd t'miii'TS. Where vou intend to use the premises for the 
. . . . , , ^ 1 , , ,.<■ „i,.„i,,.i ni ,i;/T,.. i li , . , . („ *i,,.„„ i;„»,.,i : . - n i * ■ 

left, please list (please I'ead r.uidance note 5) 

K 

Please highlight any ndult iintertainment or ser'i'kes, acti^'ities, other entertainmeBt or matters 
ancillary to (he use of the premises that roa} r-i'te rise to concern in respect of children (please read 
guidance note 8j. 



Hours Itemises lire oiieii 
to (he |)ul)lic 
Slaiuhird ila\'s and tiniiii[;s 
(plca-;c I'cad suiidancc note 

1 *" 
Da) 

K4on 

Tue 

Wed 

Thur 

1 Fn 

Sat 

Sun 

Start 

06.00 

06.00 

06.00 

06.00 

06.00 
. -. 

06.00 

06.00 

I'iriish 

05.00 

05 00 

05 00 

05 00 

05.00 

05.00 

05.00 

Stule ;un s<'asoniiI x'arialions (please icul iniidancc note 4) 

Non standard timinus. Where xou intend the premises to be open to the 
public at different times from those listed in the column on the left, 
please list (please read suiidance note 5) 

Please identif\ those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a 
consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking. 



* I ha\e enclosed ihc premises licence 

'^ I liaxe enclosed the rele\anl pai'l o f Ihc premises licence 

f'leasc lick as appmpriale 

D 
II ;(>ii hax'e not tickci,! c)ne (>f these boxes, please 1111 in reasons io r not inclndin;^ the licence or part o f i t 
below 



M 
Describe an_\ adilitional steps you intend lo take lo promote the for,! licensint', objectives as a result of the 
proposed \';n'iaiion; 

a) (ieneral - all lour licensiii<^ ol)jec<i^'es (b. c, tl and e) (please rciul ^nidance note ')) 
No aildilional steps required 

b) The pl̂ c '̂ention of crime and disorder 
No additional steps required 

c) Public safety 
No additional steps required 

d) The prevention of public nuisance 
The external area marked "garden" and "Conservatory" on the deposited plan shall be cleared of customers 
b) 01.00 

e) The protection of children from harm 
No additional steps required 



rhechlist : 

Please (ici: to iiulseaU' ifjreeFiicnl 

t' I lia\c made Ml LIILICSCJ |i,;\niciii nl llie fee. I- | 

'"' I ha\e scnl co|)ic.s ol llii.. a|)plicaiiuii aiiil ihc plan lo responsible autliunlies aiKJ olhei's whci'c 

applicahlc ' ' 

* I iiinlci'slaiid llial 1 niiisl now ai-l\'L'rli>c iii\ a|)plicalioii. [^] 

*■ I lia\'c enclosed Ihe pix-inises licence or rele\'anl pari ol il or e.\planalioii. [v ] 

* I undersland ihai if I do noi coniplN willi the abo\e rec|nii"einenls ni) application w ill be 
rejected, '- -' 

IT IS AN OFFENCE. LIABLE ON SUMMARY' CO'NVICllON TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING 
LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD SCALE. [INDER SECTION ]5H OF THE LICENSINC ACT 2003, 
TO MAlvE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN (T)NNEC^TION W m i THIS APPLICATION. 

Par(. 5 - Sf'inaUires (please read guidance nole 10) 

Sif;na(ure of applicant (the current premises licence iiolder) or applicant's solicitor or other duly 
authorised a;;eiil (please read [̂ luidance note 11). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in 
what capacity. 

Signature 

Date 

Capacity 

vDV^ 
23rd June 2015 

Solicitors for applicant 

Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the current premises licence 
holder) or 2;id applicant's solicitor or other authorised agent (please read guidance note 12). If 
signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in wh; t capacity. 

Signature 

Dale 

Capacity 

Contact name (where not previous!) given) und adcress for correspondence i.i;:!0ci;iteG with this 
application (please read guidance note 13) 

BLP 
Adelaide House 
London Bridge 

Post town London Post code EC4R 9HA 

Teleohonc nunber (if any) 
If 50U would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 



Notes for < Guidance 

This application cannot be used to ^ary the licence so as to extend the period (or wInch the licence 
lias ellect or to yary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of 
clian<;e to the premises licence, you should make a new premises licence ap|)lication under section 17 
of the IJcensiufi Act 2003. 

1. Dcsciihc Ihc pi'emises. For example Ihe type o!'premises, its licneiiil situation and layout and any 
other information which could be relevant to the liceiisin;; objectives. Where your application 
includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for consumption of these off-
supplies, you must include a description of where Ihe place ^vill he ant! its pioximily to the 
premises. 

2. Where taking place in a building or oilier structure please lick as appropriate (indoois may include 
a tent). 

3. For example stale type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further 
details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified. 

4. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the 
summer months. 

5. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day 
e.g. Christmas Eve. 

6. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16:00) and onh, give details for the days of the week 
when you intend the premises to be used for the activity. 

7. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, p'case tick 'on the premises". If 
you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away Horn the premises, please tick 
'off the premises'. If you wish people lo be able to do both, please lick 'both'. 

8. Please give information about anything intended lo occur at the premises or ancillary lo the use of 
the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children regardless of whether you 
intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudit\ or semi-
nudil), films for restricted age groups or the presence of gaming machines. 

9. Please list here steps you will take lo promote all four licensing objectives together, 
10. The application form must be signed. 
11. .^n applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they 

have actual authority to do so. 
12. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agents must sign 

the application form. 
13. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 



 

 

 QK - Brent Borough 
QD - Licensing Department 

  The Licensing Officer 
Health, Safety and Licensing 
Brent Civic Centre  
Engineers Way 
Wembley 
HA9 7FJ 
 
 

 

Your ref:  N/A 

Our ref: 01QK/351/15/782 

 

 
Brent Civic Centre 
5th Floor 
Engineers Way 
Wembley 
HA9 7FJ 

Telephone: 02087333206 
Mobile: 07500993899 
Email: 
paul.whitcomb@met.police.uk 
Your ref: N/A  
 

Date: 21st July 2015 

 
Police Representation to the Application for a variation of premises 
licence for Cocoa, 271-273 Kilburn High Road, Kilburn, London 
NW6 7JR.  
I certify that I have considered the application shown above and I wish to make 

representations that the likely effect of the grant of the application is detrimental to 

the Council’s Licensing Objectives for the reasons indicated below. 

Officer: Paul Whitcomb PC 782QK 

Brent Police Licensing Constable 

An officer of the Metropolitan Police Service, in whose area the premises are situated, 

who is authorised for the purposes of exercising its statutory function as a ‘Responsible 

Authority’ under the Licensing Act 2003. 

The application has been made to vary the premises licence under section 34 of the 

act.  

The following has been requested: 

1. To permit a terminal hour for late night refreshment of 05:00 in certain parts 

of the premises.  

2. To change the internal layout. 

3. To amend condition 9 in Annexe 2 to read; “After 23:00 smoking areas shall 

be supervised at all times.” 

The police representations are primarily concerned with crime and disorder and 

public nuisance.  

Although planning is not a matter for the police, the following has come to my 

attention whilst looking at this application. Whilst speaking with Brent councils 

planning department, I have been made aware of the following restriction on this 

particular premise, in terms of planning hours: 



 “The premises shall not be used except between the hours of: 0700 hours and 

2400 hours Mondays to Saturdays, 0800 hours and 2300  hours on Sundays 

and Bank Holidays and at no other time without the written consent of the 

Local Planning Authority.” 

I shall leave the above for consideration by the London Borough of Brent.  

271-273 Kilburn High Road, NW6 is located on the west side of the busy Kilburn High 

Road, NW6. Although situated within a busy commercial location, it can be said that 

the premise is also wholly within a residential area. To the right of the premise is The 

Tricycle Theatre and to the left is the Brondesbury Medical Centre, which houses 

numerous residential flats above it. Opposite, shops are located and other 

commercial units with flats above them. The rear of the venue is within very close 

proximity of back gardens which run from residential houses located on Dunster 

Gardens, NW6. I am led to believe that the applicant will also build residential 

properties above the venue too. My main concern is the use of the outside garden, 

outside front seating and conservatory areas. I fear that unrestricted use of these 

areas, late at night, will have a detrimental affect on the licensing objectives, 

particularly the impact this will have on public nuisance. All properties in the vicinity of 

this premise will be affected by noise from outdoor areas of the premises.  

During a meeting between myself, Lord Haleem Kherallah and others, I asked Lord 

Kherallah whether it was his intention to carry out a shisha operation at the premise, 

either now or in the future. He informed me that this was not his intention at all. 

However, he went on to say that he would not rule out selling ‘premium shisha’ at the 

venue, if it was requested by a customer. I can only imagine that if this is allowed by 

the management, this activity would take place in the rear garden. Although not a 

licensable activity in itself, shisha and any form of smoking in the rear garden until 

0500 would likely cause public nuisance late at night for local residents.    

The applicant has requested that existing premises licence condition number nine (9) 

be re-worded to; ‘After 2300 smoking areas shall be supervised at all times’. 

However, police believe that any use of an outdoor area after 2300 hours, in a 

residential area undermines the public nuisance licensing objective. Use of such 

outdoor areas, in a residential area until 0500 hours, will likely result in complaints 

from residents on a regular basis. As such, police request this condition is not re-

worded at all. Police request that condition 9 is removed and replaced with condition 

numbers 9, 10 and 11 listed below. I also have concerns with the proposed use of 

the conservatory area and the use of outdoor seating areas at the front of premises. I 

have added conditions below, to mitigate any adverse affects on the licensing 

objectives.   

 
Police request that the following conditions be removed: 
 
1. (Existing condition 10) A Challenge 21 policy shall be adopted and adhered to.  
Outdated condition. To be replaced by an updated Challenge 25 condition below 
(See added condition 3). 
 
2. (Existing condition 4) The licensee shall keep an incident book which shall be 
made available to the police and licensing authority.  
Outdated condition. Replaced with a more thorough condition below. (See added 
condition 6).  



 
3. (Existing condition 9) After 23:00 hours outside smoking areas shall be limited to 5 
persons and each area shall be suitably supervised. Replaced with a re-worded 
conditions (See added conditions 8, 9 and 10) 
 
4. (Existing condition 8) The outside drinking areas shall cease at 23:00hrs. 
Replaced with re-worded conditions (See added conditions numbers 8, 9 and 10). 
 
 
Police request that the following conditions be added: 
 
1. CCTV cameras shall be installed to cover the entrance of the premises, the 
conservatory, outside front seating and the rear garden areas.  
 
2. The CCTV system shall be capable of obtaining clear facial recognition  images 
and a clear head and shoulders image of every person entering or leaving the 
premises and that the correct time and date stamps are shown.   
 
3. A ‘Challenge 25 policy’ shall be adopted and adhered to at all times. 
 

4. Outside of the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol, all alcohol within the trading 

area/bar area is to be secured behind locked grills, locked screens or locked cabinet 

doors so as to prevent access to the alcohol by customers or staff. 

5. The DPS shall ensure all public areas within three (3) metres of the premises are 

cleared of litter arising from the premises daily. 

6. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available for Inspection on 

request to an authorised officer of Brent Council or the Police, which will record the 

following: 

   All crimes reported to the venue 

   All ejections of patrons 

  Any complaints received 

  Any faults in the CCTV system 

  Any refusal of the sale of alcohol 

  Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

7. All deliveries shall take place during the normal working day (i.e. 09:00 to 18:00 
daily). 
 
8. Customers/staff shall not be allowed access/use of the outside rear garden from 22:30hrs 

Sunday - Thursday and 00:00hrs Friday-Saturday. Notices shall be displayed in 
appropriate locations to ensure that this information is brought to the attention of 
customers. 
 
9. Tables and chairs within the outside front seating area are to be removed at 22:30hrs 
Sunday-Thursday and 00:00hrs Friday-Saturday. Customers/staff/members of the public 
shall not be allowed to use this area after these times, save for exit from or entry to the 
premises.  
 



10. The conservatory shall not be used after 22.30hrs Sunday-Thursday and 00:00hrs 
Friday and Saturday. After these times, all doors and windows shall be fully closed.  
 

11. All ventilation and extract systems shall be designed, installed and maintained so 
as not to cause a nuisance to nearby properties. 
 
All other existing conditions to remain the same.  
 
 
 
  
 
 
         Yours sincerely, 

 

 
 
Paul Whitcomb PC 782QK 
Brent Police Licensing  

 

 



 REGENERATION AND GROWTH

Tel:
Direct Line

Fax:
Email:

Web:
Date:

Regulatory Services
Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way,
Wembley, Middlesex. HA9 0FJ
(020) 8937 5252
020-8937 5190
(020) 8937 5150
environmentandprotection@brent.go

www.brent.gov.uk
06/08/2015

Craig Baylis
BERWIN LEIGHTON PAISNER
ADELAIDE HOUSE
LONDON BRIDGE
LONDON
EC4R 9HA

Your Ref:
Our Ref:
Contact:

SR/14766/15
Jill Nesbit

Dear Mr Baylis,

Licensing Act 2003
Application for a Premises Licence   
271-273 Kilburn High Road, London, NW6 7JR

I refer to your application on for a Premises Licence for the above named premises. In
accordance to the scaled drawings submitted to us in related to the Application, the Public
Safety Team make a Representation to the Licensing Authority on the grounds of Public
Safety.

Providing you are willing accept the proposed licence conditions the Public Safety Team
would withdraw the Representation:-

Licence Conditions

The maximum number of persons within the premises shall not exceed 60
including staff.

Any locks or flush latches on exit doors shall be unlocked and kept free from
fastenings other than push bars whilst the public are on the premises.

The front door and 2 internal conservatory doors into the main restaurant shall
remain fixed in the open position whilst the public are on the premises so as to
ensure an unobstructed means of escape.  Alternatively the doors can be changed
to open in the direction of escape

The furthest points in the rear garden are over the maximum travel distance of 18m
to a storey exit therefore use of the garden is not permitted.

Suitable emergency exit signage and emergency lighting shall be provided
throughout the main premises and conservatory areas. 



Any socket outlets (or other power supplies used for DJ equipment, band
equipment and other portable equipment) that are accessible to performers, staff
or the public shall be suitably protected by a residual current device (RCD having a
rated residual operating current not exceeding 30 milliamps).

In order for the Public Safety Team to withdraw this representation, it will be necessary for
you or your client to confirm in writing that the above works have been rectified and that
you accept the above licence conditions.

We will require these conditions to appear on the licence schedule should the licence be
granted.

If you or your client requires further clarification please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

Jill Nesbit
Public Safety Officer
Regeneration and Growth



, / 

Garden 

'^Y/,y,/,v.y.yy.v.yyy................... . v , . , . ^ ^ , ^ . , ,,, r ^ 

269 Kji-'Duni.J-ligh/foad, 
licyglB'fntcj-t're 

Client 

Judith Taylor 
77 Baker Street 
London W1U6RF 

Project 

Mixed Use Development 
Ti'\-ll'i, Kiiauin hif,h Road 
London N\A/6 7JR 

Title 

Ground Floor 
Licensing Plan 

Job No 

15008 

Dnte 

May 2015 

DwgNo 

Lie-100 

Scale 

1:100@A3 

j ^ 

v | 
Rev 

St,-5Re 

C 

"^X 5 
Dv«n 

SJL 

ROH ARCHITECTS 
25 Lonsdale ^oad Tal ~l-i4 iD12D 7372 7573 
London NVV6 oR/A t:av. -r4i [0120 7372 0073 

! nfo@ roh - a rch i tects .corn 

w WW, roil-arc hitei;ts.coin 





LBB – Premises Licence 542865 Page no. 1

 
 

ENVIRONMENT & NEIGHBOURHOOD
REGULATORY SERVICES 
BRENT CIVIC CENTRE
ENGINEERS WAY
WEMBLEY 
HA9 0FJ 

TEL: 020 8937 5359
EMAIL: business.licence@brent.gov.uk

 

London Borough of Brent
 

Premises Licence
 

PART A

This Premises Licence was granted by Brent Council, Licensing Authority for the area of the 
Borough of Brent under the Licensing Act 2003. 

Signed...................................
Director of Environment and Neighbourhood

Date: 31 March 2015 

 Licence number 542865 

 Licence start date: 29/10/2009

Part 1 - Premises Details

COCOA, 271-273 Kilburn High Road, London, NW6 7JR 
 

Licensable activities and the times authorised by this licence 

Films:

Day Start Time End Time
Monday 08:00 01:00
Tuesday 08:00 01:00
Wednesday 08:00 01:00
Thursday 08:00 01:00
Friday 08:00 01:00
Saturday 08:00 01:00
Sunday 08:00 01:00

Seasonal variations: During the month of December extension of hours to 0300 including 
in to new years day.



LBB – Premises Licence 542865 Page no. 2

Provision of Late Night Refreshment:

Day Start Time End Time
Monday 23:00 01:00
Tuesday 23:00 01:00
Wednesday 23:00 01:00
Thursday 23:00 01:00
Friday 23:00 01:00
Saturday 23:00 01:00
Sunday 23:00 01:00

Seasonal variations: During the month of December extension of hours to 0300 including 
into new years only.

Supply of Alcohol:

Day Start Time End Time
Monday 08:00 00:30
Tuesday 08:00 00:30
Wednesday 08:00 00:30
Thursday 08:00 00:30
Friday 08:00 00:30
Saturday 08:00 00:30
Sunday 08:00 00:30

Seasonal variations: During the month of December extensions of hours to 0200 including 
into new years days

Whether alcohol is authorised to be supplied on or off the premises: On  

The Opening Hours of the Premises:
Day Start Time End Time
Monday 06:00 01:00
Tuesday 06:00 01:00
Wednesday 06:00 01:00
Thursday 06:00 01:00
Friday 06:00 01:00
Saturday 06:00 01:00
Sunday 06:00 01:00

Seasonal variations: During the month of December extension of hours of 0300 including 
into New Years day.

 Part 2
 

Details of Holder of Premises Licence:

Name: Marina Gattash
Address: 77 Baker Street, London, W1U 6RF
Telephone: 07970 921202
Email: kherallah@aol.com



LBB – Premises Licence 542865 Page no. 3

Details of Designated Premises Supervisor:

Name: Mr Shukri Ahmeti
Address: 159 Dollis Hill Avenue, London, NW2 6RG
Personal Licence Number: 191527
Issuing authority: London Borough of Brent 

Annexe 1 - Mandatory Conditions

No Irresponsible Drinks Promotions
(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the 
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises-
(a) games or other activities which
require or encourage,
or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to- 
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied 
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is 
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner 
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or 
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable 
manner;
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where 
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

Free Water
The responsible person shall ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 
customers where it is reasonably available.

Age Verification Policy
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that 
the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification 
policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, 
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either-
(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

Small Measures to be Available



LBB – Premises Licence 542865 Page no. 4

The responsible person must ensure that-
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance 
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
following measures-
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 
available to customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol 
to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available

Minimum Price of Alcohol
1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1-
(a) ―duty‖ is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) ―permitted price‖ is the price found by applying the formula-
P = D + (D x V)
where-
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the 
alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to 
the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol;
(c) ―relevant person‖ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence¿
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a 
licence;
(d) ―relevant person‖ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e) ―valued added tax‖ means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 
Added Tax Act 1994.
3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall 
be taken to be the price actually given by that sub- paragraph rounded up to the nearest 
penny.
4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 
paragraph 2 on a day (―the first day‖) would be different from the permitted price on the 
next day (―the second day‖) as a result of a change to the rat e of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second 
day.

Requirement for a DPS
(1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence-
(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises 
licence, or
(b) at a time when the designated



LBB – Premises Licence 542865 Page no. 5

premises supervisor 
does not hold a personal licence or
their personal licence is suspended.
(2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be 
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

 Embedded Conditions

Not applicable

Annexe 2 - Conditions Consistent With the Operating Schedule

1. CCTV shall be installed to Home Office Guidance standards and maintained in a good 
working condition and recordings shall be kept for 31 days and shall be made available to 
police and licensing officers if requested.

2. Customers shall not be permitted to take open glass containers outside the premises as 
defined on the plan submitted to and approved by the Licensing Authority.

3. A member of staff fluent in English shall be present on the premises throughout the 
permitted hours for the sale of alcohol.

4. The licensee shall keep an incident book which shall be made available to the Police and 
Licensing Authority.

5. A clear and unobstructed view into the premises shall be maintained at all times.

6. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages (including free drinking water) shall be 
available during the whole of licensed hours in all parts of the premises where intoxicants 
are provided.

7. A copy of the premises licence summary including the hours which licensable activities 
are permitted shall be visible from the outside of each entrance to the premises.

8. The outside drinking areas shall cease at 23:00 hours.

9. After 23:00 hours outside smoking areas shall be limited to 5 persons and each area 
shall be suitably supervised.

10. A ‘Challenge 21’ policy shall be adopted and adhered to.

11. Notices asking customers to leave quietly shall be conspicuously displayed at all exits. 

Annexe 3 - Conditions Attached After a Hearing by the Licensing 
Authority

Not applicable  

Annexe 4 - Plans

See attached sheet. 





1:100006 August 2015




	Agenda
	2 Application for variation to a premises licence held by HAKA International Ltd for the extension of the licence for late night refreshment to 05.00 hours, changes to the internal layout and amendment to condition 9 at "Cocoa", (271-273 Kilburn High Road, NW6 7JR), pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.
	Application
	Police - Representation
	Public SafetyRep
	Plan
	Cocoa Licence
	Haka International (Cocoa) OS Map


